TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL

OFFICIAL WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES
TUALATIN FOR JUNE 23,2025

PRESENT: Mayor Frank Bubenik, Council President Valerie Pratt, Councilor Bridget Brooks,
Councilor Maria Reyes, Councilor Cyndy Hillier, Councilor Christen Sacco, Councilor Octavio
Gonzalez

Mayor Bubenik called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
1. Clackamas County Land Suitability Assessment.

Assistant Community Development Director Steve Koper presented the Clackamas County Land
Suitability Assessment. He provided background stating that in early 2024 the county approached
cities to discuss a project intended to evaluate potentially developable lands within rural areas of
the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) and designated Urban Reserves. He noted that the Stafford
Urban Reserves could be included in the study. Director Koper explained that cities initially raised
concerns that the scope resembled “concept planning,” which would conflict with the existing five-
party and three-party Intergovernmental Agreements (IGAs). Since then, the county has revised
the scope. Director Koper explained that the revised draft no longer constitutes concept planning
and that any of the three potential pilot areas identified for further analysis would only be included
with the concurrence of the adjacent city. He stated that staff have reviewed the revised scope
and found it acceptable. Director Koper stated the county is now requesting a letter of support
from cities to submit alongside their 2040 Planning and Development Grant application to Metro.
Director Koper asked the Council whether there is support to provide such a letter.

Council President Pratt asked how much funding Clackamas County is seeking through the Metro
grant. Director Steve Koper responded that he did not know the exact amount.

Council President Pratt questioned why the study includes urban reserves rather than being
limited to areas within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB), expressing opposition to the inclusion
of urban reserves and stating she does not support studying the Stafford Urban Reserve.

Councilor Reyes expressed support for submitting a letter of support, stating that it demonstrates
goodwill toward the county and partner agencies.

Councilor Brooks joined the meeting at 5:12 p.m.

Councilor Hillier voiced support for the letter of support, provided it includes language specifying
that Stafford should not be considered as one of the pilot areas in the study.

Councilor Brooks stated she did not support the study, citing the lack of infrastructure funding and
concerns that the project would result in an unfunded planning effort.



Councilor Gonzalez supported the letter, noting that having more information could be helpful for
future planning decisions.

Council consensus was reached to move forward with a letter of support for the county’s grant
application, with an explicit statement that the city does not support including the Stafford Urban
Reserve as a study area.

. WCCLS Funding & Governance Update.

Library Director Jerianne Thompson presented an update on the Washington County Cooperative
Library Services (WCCLS) funding and governance project. She explained that the County is
reviewing how funding is allocated among member libraries and shared a chart illustrating
potential redistribution scenarios, noting that the methodology could still change. Director
Thompson spoke about the proposed shift to centralized collection management, which is
projected to be implemented in July 2027. She stated a consultant will be hired this fall to begin
the transition planning.

Director Thompson stated that Tualatin residents place high value on the library’s collection,
which ranks as the second most important factor in choosing a library to visit. She expressed
concern that losing local control over the collection would significantly affect both patrons and
staff. She noted that Tualatin is advocating for greater partnership and collaboration in the
process.

Director Thompson shared that the current local option levy provides $0.22 per $1,000 of
assessed value.

Councilor Sacco asked how centralizing collection management would result in cost savings.
Library Director Jerianne Thompson stated that while a detailed analysis has not yet been
completed, proponents believe centralized management would reduce duplication of effort across
libraries.

Councilor Sacco asked if there would be an opportunity for community input under the new model.
Director Thompson responded that the details of the process have not yet been finalized, but
mechanisms for public input are expected to be developed as the project progresses.

Councilor Brooks asked about the indirect costs incurred by the library. Director Thompson
explained that indirect costs include shared city expenses such as facility maintenance.

Councilor Brooks asked about the non-profit libraries in the system. Director Thompson stated
that three non-profit libraries operate within unincorporated areas of Washington County.

Councilor Brooks asked how the Council can support the library and provide input on these issues.
Director Thompson stated that having local advocates, including the Homeless Services Liaison,
has been valuable in communicating library needs to the broader system.

Councilor Reyes asked why the Aloha Library is receiving a larger share of funding. Director
Thompson explained that Aloha joined the cooperative in 2015 and was initially under-resourced.
She stated the new model is intended to rebalance funding more equitably.



Councilor Reyes also asked about the basis for allocation decisions and what the City can do to
demonstrate that the Tualatin Library serves more than just the immediate population. Director
Thompson stated that usage data, programming, and service equity are important metrics. She
stated that the need for continued advocacy to show the library’s broader regional impact as
important.

Council President Pratt asked why usage was not included as a factor in the funding methodology.
Director Thompson stated that usage-based formulas had created inequities in the past, and the
current model is focused more on equitable service levels.

Council President Pratt expressed concern about centralized collection management and how it
may impact the Tualatin Library’s ability to reflect local needs. She also asked whether the library
and public safety levies would be combined or presented separately. Director Thompson stated
that they are separate proposals.

Councilor Gonzalez asked how the increasing use of digital audiobooks and eBooks affects staffing
decisions at the library. Director Thompson stated that while most digital checkouts occur through
the Libby app, staff are not directly involved in curating or supporting that platform.

Councilor Hillier asked about funding support for residents in the Clackamas County portion of
Tualatin. Director Thompson stated that because Tualatin is part of the Washington County
Cooperative Library Services system, all library funding comes from Washington County.

Councilor Hillier asked whether hours or staff positions would be cut under the proposed changes.
Director Thompson stated that the Tualatin Library will remain open 54 hours per week and there
are no plans to eliminate staff positions and work related to collection management would be
reallocated.

Councilor Hillier asked when centralized collection management is expected to begin. Director
Thompson stated that implementation is projected for July 2027, with planning and consultant
work beginning this fall.

Mayor Bubenik expressed concern about the levy’s viability in Tualatin if it results in reduced
services. He asked when the current study would conclude. Director Thompson stated that a
public hearing on the levy is happening tomorrow, and the funding methodology and service
boundary discussions are expected to wrap up in September.

. City Council 2025 Priorities Review & Update.

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos provided an update on the City Council’s 2025 priorities, outlining
progress made and ongoing efforts across each area. She began with Priority 1: Neighborhood
Engagement. Manager Lombos stated that work is underway to complete a street tree inventory
and to develop a list of adaptive street trees. She stated once those are finalized, staff will begin
addressing the backlog of assessments. Both the inventory and tree list are expected to be
completed by the end of the year. Manager Lombos shared Priority 1.5, which focuses on working
with Community Involvement Organizations (ClOs), stated that a joint CIO/City Council work
session is scheduled for August 25, and boundary updates are currently in progress.

Manager Lombos shared Priority 2: Housing. She reported that the city continues its work to
support and incentivize diversified housing opportunities. She shared Priority 3: Economic



Development which includes support for food cart policies. She stated funds have been allocated
in the Community Development budget for that work. She added that Economic Development
Manager Sid Sin has been engaging actively with the business community.

Manager Lombos shared Priority 4: Transportation, that the Transportation System Plan (TSP)
update is underway. On Priority 5: Environment, she noted that the Climate Action Plan continues
to advance, and that Tualatin’s Bee City designation has helped raise awareness about
environmental initiatives. Manager Lombos shared that the seismic valve request was included in
the city’s legislative priorities and that funding for the project has now been allocated in the state
budget.

Manager Lombos shared Priority 6: Parks, that staff are exploring revenue opportunities to
support long-term parks maintenance. She stated the city recently signed a contract to conduct an
analysis to evaluate maintenance funding and resource needs. She also noted continued
partnerships with the Tualatin-Tigard School District and ongoing development of new
recreational programming.

Manager Lombos shared Priority 7: Culture and Identity, stating that the Inclusion, Diversity,
Equity, and Access (IDEA) Committee remains engaged, and staff-wide trauma-informed care
training has begun. She also noted that work is also underway on a citywide strategic
communications plan. Manager Lombos stated that the city’s new website will be launched soon
and will improve communications and access to services.

Council President Pratt stated she looks forward to future updates regarding communications and
collaboration with the school district.

. Proclamation Request.
Council approved the request.
. Council Meeting Agenda Review, Communications & Roundtable.

Councilor Sacco stated she attended the Willamette River Water Coalition (WRWC) Board
meeting and the Inclusion, Diversity, Equity, and Access (IDEA) Committee meeting.

Councilor Brooks stated she attended the Policy Advisory Board (PAB) meeting and the Tualatin
Arts Advisory Committee meeting. She acknowledged World Refugee Day.

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos presented her Manager’s Report. She shared that she attended the
Metro Managers meeting, met with Washington County to discuss their funding challenges and
the resulting impacts on Tualatin, and provided an update on the Transient Lodging Tax bill. She
also attend a Washington County meeting on homelessness, meet with Portland General Electric
(PGE) regarding Climate Action Plan funding, and shared an update on the city's economic
development initiatives.

Council President Pratt stated she participated in a town hall event hosted by Congresswoman
Andrea Salinas.



Mayor Bubenik stated he attended the Westside Economic Alliance (WEA) “Meet the Mayors”
event and has been working with state legislators on the proposed transportation funding
package.

Adjournment

Mayor Bubenik adjourned the meeting at 6:47 p.m.

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

/ Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

/ Frank Bubenik, Mayor




